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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of New Saraswati House (India) Private
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit
and lLoss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act'™) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial pasition, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepied in
India, inciuding the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act., read with
the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility alse includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecfing frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We have
taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
reguired to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.
We conducted our audit of the standalone ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonabie assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditer considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's
preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the ind AS financial statements. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the Ind AS financial statements. :

Opinion

In our opinion and te the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Ind AS
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so reguired and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2018, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

2.

(a)

()

)

(d

(e

)]

G

As required by the Companies (Auditor's report) Order, 2016 (“the Order') issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure 1
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Crder.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by faw have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealft with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018, from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer te our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this
report;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and {o the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

li. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses,

ifi. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred fo the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For 5.R. Batiiboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number; 101049W/E300004

per Yogesh Midha
Partner

Membership Number: 94941

Place: New Delhi

Date: 23 May, 2018
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of report on other legal and regulatory reguirements

Re: New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited (‘the Company")

() (&) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details

an

(i

(iv)

)

(vi)

and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b) All fixed assets were physical verified by the management in the previous year in accordance with

(c)

the planned pregramme of verifying them once in fwo years which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regards to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no immovable
properties, included In property, plant and equipment/ fixed assets of the company and
accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(I)c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company,

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable interval during
the year and no material discrepancies noted on such verification, Inventories lying with third
parties have been confirmed by them on various date and no material discrepancies were noticed
in respect of such confirmation.

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any
loan secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly,
the provision of clause iii(a), (b and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence
not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there are no loan,
investment guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under clause 148(1) of the Companies Act 2013, for the
product/services of the Company.

(vil)(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory

(b

(c)

dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, service tax/goods and
service tax, value added tax, duty of custom, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to
it. The provisions relating to excise duty are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given fo us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of income-tax, provident fund, service tax/goods and service tax, vaiue added tax, duty
of custom, cess and other undisputed statutory dues were outstanding, at the period end, for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales-
tax, service tax/goods and service tax, custom duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess which
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(viil)

0

0

(xi)

(xiiy

(xiiD)

(xiv)

xv)

(xvi)

In our opinfon and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institution or bank
or dues to debenture holders. The Company does not have any dues in respect of government.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments and term loans
hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented
upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the financial statements and according to the Information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud on or by the officers and employees of the Company has
been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinien, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xD) of
the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According fo the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required
by the applicable accounting standards,

According to the information and explanations given fo us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting
reguirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred
to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Assoclates LLP
ICAI Firm registration number: L01049W/E300004

Chartered Accountants

4
o

per Yogesh Midha

Partner

Membership No.: 94941

Place: New Delhi
Date: 23 May 2018
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NEW SARASWATI HOUSE (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

‘We have audited the internal financial conirols over financial reporting of New Saraswati House (India) Privaie
Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate interpal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Inteynal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the
Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial staterments was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our andit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controis over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
{inancial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these {inancial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financtal Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporiing and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unautherised acquisition, use, or disposition of
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls ovet financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements and such infernal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements were operating effeclively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential componenis of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049}&’

Yoo

per Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership Number: 4941

Place: New Delhi
Date: 23 May 2018



New Saraswati House (llillin) Private Limited
Balunce sheet as at 31 March 2018
CIN: UZX110D1,2013PTC262320

(Rs. in milkions)

Notes As af As at As ar
31 March 2018 31 March 2027 1 April 2016

Asset
Non-current assets
Property, plaat and equipment 3 40.40 3745 40.26
[ntangible assets
- Goodwill 4 36,713 56.73 56,73
- Other intangible assets 4 143.90 13849 148.55
Capiial work-in-propress 397 4.35 4.24
Financial asscts
- Loans 5B 14.30 3,16 9.05
- Other financial asscts s 0.08 0.08 0.08
Other non-current assets 7 4.45 649 2.60
Deferred tax assets (net) 8 - - 15.5¢4
Total nen-current assefs 263,83 246,75 277105
Current assets
Inventorics G 37302 440,48 385.90
Financial assets .
- Trade receivables SA 1,552.78 1,195.39 969.16
- Loans 5B 16.20 24.91 2175
- Cash and cash equivalents s5C 116.36 4304 3%.19
Other current assets 7 2.41 .81 343
Total current assets 2,060.87 1,71E.63 1,425.43
Total assets 2,324.70 1,958.38 1,702.48
Eauity and Eisbilities
Equity
Equity share capital 9 0,21 0.21 0,21
Other equity
- Retained earnings 10 113.5: 1334 £0.87
- Other reserves 10 541.32 540.62 410.12
Total ecuity 655.97 S§54.17 471.2¢
Non-eurrent liabilities
Finaneial liabilities
- Borrowings THA 746.08 552.92 52G.00
- Trade payables i2 6.49 9.35 621
Provisions 14 12,71 11.79 15,22
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 8 2.18 6.71 -
Total non current liabilities 767.40 580.77 S541.43
Current linbilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 1B 310,68 232.49 1t7.16
- Trade payvables i2 523.85 55518 481.14
- Other financial liabilitics 13 5.63 2.28 27.25
Provisions 14 29.33 4.36 39.32
Other current liabilities 15 32,68 2513 24.98
Total carrent linbilities 902,17 823.44 689,85
‘Tatal equity and liabilities 2.324.70 1,958,318 1,702.48
Summary of significant accountiing policies 2.1 '

The accompanving notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
As per our report of even date |

For 8.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
ICA] Firm Registration No. 101049% / E300004

Chartered Accountants
bype e
ner Yogesh Midha

Parmer
Membership No.: 94941

Place : New Delhi
Date : 23 May 2018

DIN:D005401 5

DIN:000540580



New Savaswati House (India) Private Limited
Seatement of Profit and Lass for the yeur ended 31 March 2018
CIN: U22110DL20131FC262320

{Rs. in millions)

For the year ended

For the year ended

:
Notes 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
I Revenue from operations 16 1,577.05 1,347.38
1T Other income 17 5.33 1.12
1 Total Income (I+11) 1,582.38 1,348,50
I¥ Expenscs
Cost of published goods/raw matcrial consumned 18 578.65 608.19
Purchase of traded books 19 1.26 1.24
(Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 20 167.21 (68.44)
Pubiication expenses 2% 106.46 88.48
Employee benefils expense 22 256.64 230,12
Selling and distribution expenses 23 137,28 106.01
Finunce cost 24 101,13 96,76
Drepreciation and amertisation expense 23 33.21 40.91
Other expenses 26 109.10 Li7.18
‘Total expenses 1,430,%4 1,220.45
v Profit before tax (111-1V) 15k 128,08
VI Profit before tax E51.44 128,05
VIl Tax expense:
Current tax 52.78 2206
Income tax adjustment related to earlier year 5.64 -
Dreferred tax (credit)/ charge {5.30) 22.69
Total tax expenses 53.12 44.75
VIIE Profit for the year (VI-VI) 98.32 83.30
IX  Other Comprehensive Income
- [teans that will not be reclassificd to profit or loss 27
Re-measarement gains/(losses) on defined henefit plans 2,65 (1.27)
Tax impact on re-measurement pain/(loss} on defined benefit plans (0.77) 044
x  Tatal Comprehensive Income for the peried (VITE+IN)
(Comprising P'refit and Other Comprehensive Income for the year) 100,20 82,47
X1 Earnings per equity share; 28 R
(1) Basic 4,796 4,064
(2) Liluted 4,796 4,064
Sunumary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For 8.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
TCAT Firm Registration No. 101049%Y / E300004
Chartered Accountants
L% ot
Fr
per Yogesh Mic¢ha
Fartmer

Membership No.: 54941

Place : New Delhi
Datc : 23 May 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Director of

New Savaswati Ho/use (India) Prj

te Limited

irector
DIN:00054096



New Saraswati House {Tndin) Private Limited
Statement of cash flow for the yenr ended 31 March 2018
CIN: U221100L2013PTC262320

(Rs, in milligns)

Asat As at
31 Mareh 2018 31 March 2017

A, Cash flow from opernting acilivities

Profit before tax

Adjustinent to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:-
Depreciation and amortization
Employee Stock Option Expense
Interest expense
Interest income
Interest income on sceurity deposit
(Profityloss on fixed assels sold
Loss on insurance claim
Unrealized foreign exchange gain
Miscellaneons amount Written Back
Bad debts written off
Provision for bad & doubtful debts

Operating, profit before working capifal chaapes

Adjustments for changes in working capitat ;
{Incicase}deercase in trade receivables
{Increase)decrease in other non-current assets mid in other corrent assets
(Increase) decrease in non current loans & advances and current loans & advances
(Increase)/decrease in inventorics
Increase/{decrease} in non current trade payables and current trade payables
incrense/{decrease) in other financial liabililies
Increase Adecrease) i ofher current Labilities
Increase /( Drecrease ) in fong tern provisions

Cash generated from/{used in) operations

Direct ¢ax paid

Net cash gencrated from eperation

B. Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of fixed asscts, capital advances and capital work in: progress {net of capital creditor)

Praceeds from salc of fixed assets
Interest received .
Net cash used in investing activities

C. Cash flow from financing activifics
I’roceed/{Repayment) for long-term borrowings(net)
Proceeds/(Repayment) from short term borrowings (net)
Interest paid
Net cash from financing activities

Net decrease in cash & eash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - at the beginning of the vear
Cash and cash equivalents - at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand

Cheque on hand

Balance with banks on current accounts

Total Cash and cash equivalents {refer note 5C}

Reconcilintion of liabilities avising from financing actvities

151.44 128.05
3321 40,91
0.70 0.50
100.16 95.29
(0.1 (0.00)
(1.15) (L1
(0.14) 1.17
- 8.27
(0.29) -
(3.57) -
- 5.59
_ 2.90
280.22 273,57
(357.10) (234.73)
(3.18) 0.45
(1.28) .84
7337 (66.58)
(33.44) 84.26
0.17 1.68
7.13 : 4.15
326 (4.683
{30.85) “73.96
{28.68) (59.13)
(A} {59.53) 14.83
(42.10) (37.98)
0.44 0.68
.14 0.00
() (41.52) (37.30)
193.16 32.92
78.19 115.33
{96.98) (121.94)
(8] 174,37 26.31
(AHBHC) 7332 3.84
: 43.04 39.30
116.36 43.04
, 0.56 0.41
46.83 -
68.97 42,63
116.36 43,04

Lang term
. Borrowings Short term
Particulars ) . .
(including borrowings
current maturities)
Asg at 31 March 2017 352.92 232,49
Cash flows 193,16 78.19
Non cash changes - -
As at 31 March 2018 746.08 310.68

Summuary of significant accounting policies

r |

The accompanyiny notes are an integral part of the financial statcments,
As per our reporl of even date

Tor S.K. Batliboi & Associates LLP
1CAL Firm Registration No, 101049W 7 E300804
Chartered Accountants

e
o

])er-’Yugesh Midha
Parlner
Membership No.: 94941

Place : New Delhi
Date : 23 May 2018

For and on eh.l]f of the Board of Dircctor D;'/\
\lew Sar; w.m House Privaté Limited

imanshu Gupta
Director
DIN:00054015

Director .
DIN:00054090




New Saraswiati House {Indliz) Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2018
CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

A, Equity share capital:

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up (Share of Rs 100 each) Ne. of shares  (Rs. in millions)
At | April 2016 20,500 0.21
Issued during the year - -
At 31 March 2017 ’ 20,500 0.21
Issued during the year - -
At 31 Mareh 2018 20,500 032}

B. Qther equity

Reserve & Surplus

Particular Retained Securities Debenture Equity Contribution Total
carmings premium account retemption reserve by Pareat entity
As at Est April 2016 60,87 149.90 260.00 0.22 470.99
Profit for the year 83.30 - - - 83.30
Other comprehensive income for the year {0.83) - - - (0.83)
Total Comprehiensive Income for the year 82.47 - ) - - 82.47
Share based payments - - - 0.50 0.50
Transfer to debenture redemption reserve {130.00) - 130.60 - -
As at 31st Mareh 2017 13.34 149.90 390.00 . 0.72 553.96
Profit for the year 9832 - - - 98,32
Other comprehensive income for the year 1.88 - - - 1.88
Fotal Comprehensive Income for the year 100,20 - - - 100,20
Share bascd payments ’ - - - 0.70 0,70
Transfer to debenture redemption reserve - - - - -
As at 31st March 2018 113,54 149.90 390,00 1,42 654,86
Summary of sigaificant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statemenis,

As per our report of cven date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LI For and on behalfa/f_',lhe Board of Director of
1€A1 Firm Registration Ne, 101049% / £300004 New Saraswati Hotse (India) Private Limited
Chartered Accountants .

{nkifa Gu pta
E Directer
| ADavooosdols DRN:00054090

per Yogesh Midha
Pariner
Membership No.: 94941

Place * New Delli
Date : 23 May 2018




New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

1

2.1

2.2

Corporate information

New Saraswati House {India) Private Limited (the Company) is a private company domiciled in India and incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. These are standalone financial statements and, accordingly, these Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) financial statements incorporate amounts and disclosures related to the Company only.

The Company is primarily engaged in publishing of educational books.
Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The financial statetnents of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company prepared its financial statements in
accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2016 (Indian GAAP). These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 are the first the Company has
prepared in accordance with Ind AS. Reconciliation and description of effect of transition to Ind AS has been summarised
in Note 48.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the following assets and liabilities
which have been measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The financial statements are presented in INR (Indian Rupees) and all values are rounded to the nearest million, except
where otherwise indicated.

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is classified as current when:

o Ttis expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
» It is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

‘o Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified aSj;currcnt when:

e Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

s It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

s There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.




New Saraswaii House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2418
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

2.3

24

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents, The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Foreign currencies

Functional and presentational currency

The Company’s financial statements arc presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency. Functional
currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which an entity operates and is normally the currency
in which the entity primarily generates and expends cash. :

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency spot tates at the date
the transaction first qualifies for recognition,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign carrencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or transtation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
Fair value measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments and equity settled employee share based payment plan at fair value
at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e in the principal market for the asset or liability, or

» in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. '

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within

the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole:

s Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable '
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s Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurcment is
unobservable.

For assets and labilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
fevel input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, unquoted financial assets, and significant liabilities,
such as vatuation of unquoteéd investments and equity settled employee share based payment plan. Involvement of
external valuers is decided upon annually by the Company’s management. Sefection criteria include masket knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the Company’s management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Company’s management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measurﬁ:d, regardless of when the payment is received. Revenue is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or reccivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and exchuding taxes
or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Company has concluded that it is the pr'incipa! in all of its revenue
arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements, has pricing latitude, and is also exposed to
credit risks.

Sales tax/ Value added tax (VAT) Goods and services Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account.
Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is
excluded from revenue.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer, Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of sales returns, turnover discounts and cash discounts,

The provision for anticipated returns is made primarily on the basis of historical return rates. The provision for turnover
discount and cash discount is made on estimated basis based on historical trends.

Sale of services
Service income is recognized on accrual basis as and when setvices are provided and invoices raised during the year.

Iiterest income

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and other interest-bearing financial assets, interest income is
recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash

flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and
N,
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similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the
statement of profit or loss.

Income taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid o the fax
authorities in accordance with the [ndian Income Tax Act, 196 1. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates
and generates faxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity), Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the undertying transaction either
in OCI or directly in equity., Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions wheve appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
fiabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at-the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss

s In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and

any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised 1o the extent that it s probable that taxable profit will be

available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused

tax losses can be utilised, except:

o When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or [iability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

e Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferved tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised fo the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Beferred tax refating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction eltﬁg&mg&ael comprehensiye income or directly in equity,

f’f R
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if' a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax kabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Property, plant and equipment

Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), property, plant and equipment, except land and building acquired before 1
April 2016, were carried in the balance sheet at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has clected to continue with the carrying value for all its item of property, plant
and equipment as recognised in its Indian GAAP financial as deemed cost at the transition date, as at | April 2016.

Capital work in progress, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

When significant parts of propcrty,'plant and equipment are required (o be replaced at intervals, the Company recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major
inspection is pecformed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a repl'accment if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. Ajl other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost of the item can be
measured reliably.

Giains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal, Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation

Tilk 31 March 2017, depreciation on property, plant and equipment was being provided on written down value method.
W.e.f, 1 April 2017, depreciation is being provided on straight line method.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, other than leasehold improvements, have been provided on pro-rata
basis, on the straight line method, using rates determined based on management’s technical assessment of useful

economic lives of the asset.

Followings are the estimated useful lives of various category of assets used.

Category of assets Useful life as adopted by Useful life as per Schedule I
management
Office Equipment 5 years 5 years
Furniture & fixture 10 years 10 years
Vehicle 10 years 8 years
Computer (except tablets®) 3 years
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*Tablets are depreciated at an estimated useful life of 3 years.

Leasehold improvements are amortised over economic useful life or uncxpired period of lease whichever is less. Assets
costing Rs. 5,000 or less are depreciated entirely in the year of purchase.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates certain
iterns of plant and machinery, vehicles, computers and building over estimated useful lives which are different from
useful life prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful

fives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment.are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), intangible assets were carried in the balance sheet at cost, net of accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Ou transition to Tnd AS, The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all its item of intangible hssets

as recognised in its Indian GAAP financial as deemed cost at the transition date, as at 1 April 2016.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the
statement of profit or lass when it is incurred.

Amortisation and usefu! lives
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at feast at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
expected useful life of the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profif or loss
in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful fives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually
or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life continues to be supportable. 1f not, the change in useful life from indefinite fo finite is made on a
prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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A summary of the policics applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:

Intangible assets Useful lives Amortization methed used Internally
generated or
acquired
Computer software Finite {3 years) Amortized on straight line basis | Acquired
over the period of useful lives
Goodwill on business | In-definite No amortization Acquired
combination
Copyrights Finite (10 years) Amortized on straight line basis | Acquired
over the period of copyright
Content development {including | Finite (10 seasons) Amortized on straight line basis | Internally generated
In-house contents)* over the period of content

*QR codes are amortized over 6 years as per terms of license.
Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is fecognized as
an intangible asset when the company can demonstrate all the following:

o The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it wili be available for use or sale. Its intention
to complete the asset.

e [is ability to use or sel! the asset. How the asset will generate future economic benefits
o  The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset

e The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during development.

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring the
asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the
asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized on a straight line basis over
the period of expected future benefit from the related project. Amortization is recognized in the statement of profit and
loss. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

Borrowing cost

Botrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying asset are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are cxpensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement of profit and loss d'uring extended period
when active development activity of the qualifying assets is interrupted.

- Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. It

also includes exchanges differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at
the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not
explicitly specified in an arrangement.
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Company as a jessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating leasc. A lease that transters substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease. An operating lease is a
lease other than a finance lease.

Operating lease paymenis are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and nef realisable value.
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition is accounted for as follows:

e Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cest is determined on first in, first out basis.

« Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufaciuring overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined
on first in, first out basis.

» Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
lacation and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis,

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of non—financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether theve is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impaiment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use, Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When
the catrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to iis receverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. [n determining
fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate vatuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation muitiples, quoted
share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
scparately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forccast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied
to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most
recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining
growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or couniry or countries in which the entity operates, or
for the market in which the asset is used.
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Impairment losses of continuing operations, including iimpairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. [f such indication exists, the Company
estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount,
nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior vears. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when c¢ircumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to which ‘
the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU s less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
AH financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

¢ Financial assets at amortised cost

¢ Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTQCI)
¢ Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVYTOCT)
o Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost )

A *debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

o The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

» Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss.
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss,
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Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A debt instruments is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

» The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and

s The assct’s contractual cash flows rcpresenf SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCE). However, the Company
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On de-~
recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to P&L.
Interest earned whilst holding FYTOC]I debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Equity instruments at FYTOCI

All equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer it a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the group may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income. The group makes such election on an instrument-
by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then ail fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale
of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial assets, which does not meet the criteria for
categorigation as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may clect to classify a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOC]
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recognition inconsistency {referred to as ‘accounting mismateh’}.

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part ol a financial asset or part of'a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derccognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s standalone balance sheety when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

o The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
atrangement, it evaluates if and to what exlent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company bas retained,

Continuing involvement that takes the form of & guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximumn amount of consideration that the Company could be required to
repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and

recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

o Financial assets thai are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank
balance

o Financial assets that are measured as at FVTOCE

e Lease reccivables under [nd-AS 17.

o Contract assets and trade receivables under Ind-AS 18,

e Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL.

e Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
° Trade receivables, and
° All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
fifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 moaths after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between alt contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive {i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When
estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

s All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment extension, call and similar options) over the
expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument
cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial
instrument.

e Cash flows from the sale of coliateral held or other credit er;hﬂgggg‘g}ents that arc integral to the contractual terms,
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As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of
its trade receivables, The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the
trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking cstimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/expense in the
statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses” in the P&L. The balance
sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described betow:-

a) For financial assets measured as at amortised cost and leasc receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as
an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying
amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the
ZrOSS CAaITying amount.

by  Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as
a liability.

¢) Debt instruments measured at FVTOCE Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment
allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment
ameunt” in the OCL

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of
shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increases in credit risk to be identificd on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial assets
which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial labilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initiatly at fair value and, in the case of loans and bonowmgs and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafls.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liakilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading
are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initia] date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilitics designated as FVTPL, fair
value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit nsk Are recognized inOCI, These gains/loss are not
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subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or foss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most retevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to
borrowings.

Finaneial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at
the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind-AS 109 and the amount
recognised less cumulative amortisation.

De-recognition

A financial Hability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss

Re-classification of Financial Assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition,
no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets
which are debt instruments, a reclassification is inade only if there is a change in the business model for managing those
agsets. Changes to the business model are expected io be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines
change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s
operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company
either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial
assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately
next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised
gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest,

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable fegal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settie on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident
fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for
service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme
is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent
that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in futy, payrent or a cash refurid.

/
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The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately
administered fund.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements, colnprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit
to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur, Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods.

Compensated absences

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit.
The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay asa result of
the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settie the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to
be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liabitity. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due fo the
passage of time is tecognised as a finance cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank and in hand and short term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders of the
company by the weighted average number of equity shares oufstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the company by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the ycar plus the weighted average number of equity
shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the Company

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer ag_tt;gugljscretion of the Company. As per the corporate faws
T
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in Tndia, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised
directly in equity.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-measurement
recognised directly in equity.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying
amount of the assets distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest millions as per the
requirement of Schedule 11, unless otherwise stated.

Standards issued but not yet effective
a. Ind AS 115 — Revenue from contracts with customers

Ind AS 115 was notified on 28 March 2018 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The new revenue standard
will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under Ind AS. Either a full retrospective application or a
modified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018. The Company will
adopt the new standard on the required effective date using the modified retrospective method. The Company has
established an implementation team to implement Ind AS 115 related to the recognition of revenue from contracts with
customers and it continues to.evaluate the changes to accounting system and processes, and additional disclosure
requirements that may be necessary. A reliable estimate of the quantitative impact of Ind AS 115 on the financial
statements will only be possible ance the implementation project has been completed.

b. Amendments to Ind 112 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Clarification of the scope of disclosure
requirements in Ind AS 112

The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in Ind AS 112, other than those in paragraphs BI10-BI16, apply
to an entity’s intcrest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or an associate (or a portion of its interest in a joint venture of an
associate) that is classified (or included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale.

¢. Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Appendix clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to
advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, then the entity must determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

Entities may apply the Appendix requirements on a fully retrospective basis. Alternatively, an entity may apply these
requirements prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope that are initially recognised on or after:

(i) The beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the Appendix, or

(ii) The beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information in the financial statements of the
reporting period in which the entity first applies the Appendix.

The Appendix is effective for aunual periods beginning on or after 1 Aprit 2018. However, since the Company’s current
practice is in line with the Interpretation, the Company does not expect any effect on its financial stateiments.

S Nty T
: =3




New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
{Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards and interprefations

The Company appiied for the first time certain amendments to the standards, which arc effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2017, The nature and the impact of each amendment is described below:

Amendments to Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign exchange gains or losses). The
Company has provided the information for both the current and the comparative period in Cash Flow Statement.

Amendments to Ind AS 102 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions

The amendments to Ind AS 102 Share-based Payment addresses three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on
the measurement of a cash-settled share-based paymeni transaction; the classification of a share-based payment
transaction with net settlement features for withholding tax obligations; and accounting where a modification to the
terms and conditions of a sharc-based payment transaction changes its classification from cash setifed to equity settled.

M
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3. Property, plant and equipment

{Rs. in milliens)

Furrul.u re& Vehicles™ Oifﬁcc L.easehold Computer Total
Fittings Equipment Impyrovement
rross block
As at | April 2016% 11.66 228 6.88 13.36 6.08% 40.26
Additions 2.01 71.65 13% - 1.58 12.63
Disposals (0.60) - {0.03} (1.91) (0.65) (229
As at 31 Mareh 2007 13.07 9.93 8.24 £2.35 7.01 50,60
Additions 4.87 4.00 1.84 - 0.37 11,85
Disposals - - {D.01) - {0.92) {0.93)
As at 31 Maveh 2018 §7.94 13.93 10.04 12,35 6,46 60,72
Accumulated depreciation
Asat T April 2016 - - - - - -
Charge for the year 3.4 239 329 192 2,85 13.5¢
Deduclions {0.07) - {0.013 (0.04) (0.32) (0.4:4)
As al 31 March 2017 - 3.07 2.39 3.28 1.88 2.53 13,15
Charpe for the year 145 .14 2,09 1.89 1.23 1,80
Deductions - - (0.00) - {0.63) {0.63)
As at 31 March 2018 4.52 3.53 5.37 377 3,13 20.32
Net block '
Asat 1 April 2016 11.66 2.28 6,88 13.36 6.08 40.20
As at 31 March 2017 10,00 7.54 4.96 10.47 4.48 3745
As at 31 March 2018 13.42 10.40 4.67 8.58 3.33 40,40
*Noter Cost as at T April 2016 is calculated as shown below
Furniture & Office Lenschold
. hic) - ot:
Property, plant and cquipment Fittings Velicles Equipment Improvement Conyter Total
Gross block 1735 3.53 13.67 16.05 10,61 60.61
Accumnulated depreciation 5.69 1.25 6.19 2.69 4,53 20.35
Deemed cost as at 1 April 2016 11.66 2.28 6.88 13.36 6.08 4£0.26
Note:

Sines the company has changed its estimate of depreciation on property, plant and equipment from financial year 2017-18, impact of change is given in below table:

Particular {Rs. in milliens)
Depreciation as per wriilen down value 13.03
Depreciation as per straight line method 7.80
Profit increased by 523

+#The carrying value of vehicles held under finance leases contracts at 31 March 2018 was Rs. 2.92 millions (31 March 2017: Rs. 4.60 millions and | April 2016: nil).

There are no additions under finance lease contracts in cwrent vear.

i,
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4,

Intangible assets

{Rs. in mitlions)

: Content
Goudwill é::;:‘z:t:s Copy Rights (l:;:rl:gl:r:zc;:_ Total
house Content)
Gross block
Asat 1 April 2016% 56,73 3.04 124,09 21.42 205.28
Purchasesfintemal development - 537 - 11.89 17.26
Digposats - - - - -
Ind AS adjustments - - - - -
Asat 31 March 2017 56.73 3.4 124.69 33.31 222.54
Purchases/inlernal development - 1.77 B 29.05 30.82
Disposals - - - - -
Asat31 March 2018 56,73 10.18 124,09 $2.36 253.30
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2016 - - - - -
Amortization for the year - 6,70 16.67 3.95 27.32
Deductions - - - - -
Asat 31 March 2017 - 6.70 16,67 3.95 27.32
Ammortizaiion for the year - 1.20 16.66 7.55 15.41
Deductions -
As at 31 Mavch 2018 - 7.90 33,33 15.50 52,73
Net bleck
As at 1 April 2016 56,73 3.04 124,00 21.42 205.28
As at 31 Mareh 2017 56,73 1,71 107,42 29.36 195,22
As at 31 March 2018 56.73 228 99.76 50.86 200.63
*Note: Cost as at 1 Aprik, 2066 is calculated as shown below
Content
Goodwifl ;’:fl::‘l:::_; Copy Rights ((ilrel::::?rl::l]:— Tetal
Intangible house Content)
Gross block 7620 6.7% 166.69 233 273.07
Accunmlated depreciation 1947 3.75 42.60 1.97 67,79
Deemed cost as at | April 2016 56,13 3.0:4 124.09 21.42 205.28

Irapairment testing of goodwill

The Company performs test for goodwil} impainnent at least annually on March 31, or if indicator of impaizment arise, such as the cffects of obsolescence, demand,
cownpetition and other economic factor or on occurrence of an evert or change in circunstances that would more likely than not reduce the tair value below its carrying
amcunt. When detenmining the fair value, we utilize various assumptions, inchuding operaiing results, business plans and projections of future cash flows. Any adverse
changes in key assamptions about our businesses and their prospects or an adversg ghaizginmarket conditions may canse a change in the estimation of fir value and

S A

could result in an impainnent charge.
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SA.

Financial assels

Trade recsivakles

{Rs. in millions)

Asat
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2017

As at
1 Aprif 2016

Trade receivables 1,376.93 1.219.65 993,42
Receivables from related parties (rcfer note 32¢) 0.11 - - -~
Total 1,577.04 1,219.65 993,42
Break-up for security details:
Unsecored, considered good 1,552.78 1,195.39 969.16
Doubtful 24.26 24.26 24.26
Tetal 1.577.04 1,219.65 993.42
tmpairment Allowance (allewanee for bad and doubtful debis)
Unsecured, considered good - - -
Doubttizl {24.26) (24.26) (24.26)
Total (24.26) (24.26) (24,26)
Net trade yeceivables
Unsecured, considered good 1,552.78 1,195.39 962.16
Croubtful - - .
Tetal 1,552.78 £,195.39 969, 1¢
Trade receivables from related pavties (vefer note 32¢) 0.1% - -
Current 1,552.78 1,195.39 969.16
Non-Current - - -
The movement in impatrient of trade receivables is as follow;

Asat As at Asat

31 March 2018

31 dareh 2017

1 April 2016

Opening halance 2426 24,26 24.26
Additions - - -
Closing balance 24.26 24.26 24.26

Closing balance

No trade receivable are due from director or other officer of the Company cither severally or jointly witl: any other person.

[This space has been intentionolly left blank]
28
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5D,

=

Loans

(Rs. in millions)

31 March 2018

Balances with banks

- on ¢urrenl aceomts
Cash on hand
Clhegue on hand
Total

Current
Non-Current

Other financial Assets

31 Mareh 2017

Asat Asat As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 b April 2016
Security deposits - non current 1430 316 9.05
Security deposits - current 0.24 2.06 1.89
Advances recoverable in cash or kind {refer note (a} below) 15,96 16.85 25.86
Total 30.50 28,07 36.80
Current 16.20 24,91 27.75
Non-carrent 1430 3.16 5.05
Note (a)
Advances recoverable fn cash or kind
Unsecured, considered good 15,80 16.69 25.62
1580 16,69 25,62
Advances recoverable from related parties
Unsecured, considered pood 0,16 0.16 0.24
.16 0.6 0.24
15.96 16.85 25.86
>, Cash and cash equivalents
(Rs. in millions)
As at As at As at

1 April 2016

68.97 42,63 36.86
0.56 0.41 2.33
46.83 - -
116.36 43,04 39,19
116.36 45,04 39.19

{Rs. in millions)

As at
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2047

Margin money deposit {refer note below)
Total

Current
Non-current

Note

As at
1 April 2016

0.03 0.08 0.08
0.08 0.08 0.08
6.08 0.08 0,08

Margin money deposils are under lien with banks towards bank guarantees issued to sules tax authorily.

Inventories

{Rs. in millions}

Asat
31 ¥arch 2018

Raw materials
Finished goods
- Manufactured goods
- Traded poods

Asat
31 March 2017

As at
1 April 2016

36.68 2.83 10.69
336.44 443,65 37114

_ - 4.67
37342 446.48 385,90
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TC.

Other assets

Capital advances

(Rs. in mitfiens)

As at
31 Marvch 2018

As at
31 March 2017

Unsecured, considered good
Total

Prepaid expenses

As at
LApril 2016

.03 .20 0.350
1.05 1.20 0,30
(Rs, in millions)

As af
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2017

As at
TAprit 2016

31 March 2018

31 March 2057

Prepaid expenses (non current) 377 0.82 2.30
Prepaid expenses {current) 040 1.81 1.06,
Fotal 4.17 2.63 3.36
Othier nsseis
(Rs. in millions)
As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Income tax recoverable - 447 2,37
Ancillary cost of azranging borrowings (aen current) .68 - -
Ancillary cost of armangiag borrowings (curment) 2.96 - -
Total 1.64 4.47 2,37
Current 2,41 181 3.43
Non-current 4,45 6,49 2.60
" Deferred taxes
(Rs. in millions}
As at As at As at

1 April 2016

Ttems leading to creation of deferved tax assets

Tmpact of expenditure charged to the siatement of profit und loss account i the
current year but allowed for tax purposes on payment basis in subsequent year
Provision for doubtful debt & advances

Others

Total deferred tax assefs .

Ttems leading to eveation of deferred tax labilities
Fixed assets: impact of differences between tax depreciation and depreciation/
amortization charged in the financial statemenis
Other

Total deferred tax linbilities

Net deferred tux assets/{liabilites)

+.18 8.82 26.88
7.06 8.40 8.40
7.43 - -
18.67 17,22 35.28
26.85 2171 19.74
- 2,22 -
20,83 23,93 19.74
(2.58) {6.71) 15.54
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9.

10.

Share eapidal

{Rs. in millions)

Asal Asat Asat
31 Murch 2018 31 Marchk 2017 1April 2016

Authorised
100,060 (31 March 2017: 100,000 and 31 March 2016: 100,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each .00 100 1.00
Issued, szhseribed and fully paid np
20,500 (31 March 2017: 20,500 and 3| March 2016: 20,500) equity shares of s, 10/- cach 0.21 0.21 021

' 0.2f 0.21 0.21
. Keconcilintion of the shures ouistanding at {he beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Equity sharcs Number {Rs. in millions)
Tssucd, subseribest and fully paid up
As at | April 2016 20,500 &.21
Inerease/(decrease) during the year - -
As at 31 March 2017 20,500 321
[merease/(decrease) during the year - -
As at 31 March 2018 20,509 0.21

9. Termsf righis attached to equity shares

The Company has anly one class of equily shares having par vatug of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to ong vote per share. No dividend has been proposed by

the board of director during the year ended 31 March 2018 (31 Mareh 2017: Nil and 31 March 2016: Nif)

Tre the evens of liquidation of the company, (he helder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The

distribution wili be in proportion te the number ol equity shares held by the shareholder.

¢, Shares held by holding comg and their subsidiaries

31 Miarch 2018 31 Mareh 2017 1 April 2016
§ Chand and Company Limited (formerly $ Chand and Company Private Limited) 15,600 15,600 15,600
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited, Subsidiary of the holding company 4,900 4,900 4,500
4. Detaits of sharehgller holding mere than 5% cquily shares in ithe Company;: No. of shares held Ye of holding
§ Chacd and Company Limited, the Helding Company (Yermerly § Chand and
Comepany Private Limited}
As at I April 2016 15,600 76.10%
As at 31 March 2017 15,600 76.10%
As at 31 March 2018 . 15,600 76.10%
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited, subsidiary of the holding company
Asat | April 2016 4,900 23.90%
As at 31 March 2017 . 4900 2390%
As at 31 March 2018 ' 4,900 23 90%

As per records of the Company, including its register of sharsholder/ member and other declarations received from shaceholder regarding beneficial interest, (he above sharcholding

represenis both legal and beneficial owmership of shares.

Other equity

(Rs. in miltipns)

Asat
3 March 20§38

Asat
31 March 2817

Retaiued earning

Balance as the beginning ol reporting year 13.34 60.87
Add: Surplus during the year 100.20 8247
Less “Transfer to debenture redemption reserve - (130.00)
Balance s {lie end of reporting year 113.54 13.34
Bebenture redemption reserve

Balance as (ke begimning of reporting year 350.00 260,00
Increasci{Diecrease) during (he year - 130.00
Balauce as the end of repurling year 390.00 390,00
Serurities premiunt acconnt

Balance as the begimuang of reporting year 149.90 149.90
lnerease/{Deerease) during the year - -
Batance as the end of reporting year 145,90 149.96
Equity contribution by Parent Company

Balance as the beginning of reporting year . 0.72 022
Increase/(Decrease) during the year 070 0.50
Balance as {he end of reporking year 1.42 0.72

s
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il. Borrowings

11A, Non-curreni borrewings

(Rs. in milliol;s!

Asat
31 March 2018

Asat
31 March 2017

Term leans '.‘
Indian rupee loan trom financial institution (secured) (Refer Note | below)
Tndian rupee foan from bank (secured} (refer note 2 & 2A below)

Veliicle loans
Indian rupee loan from banks (secured) {Refer note 3 & 4 below)

Lean from Holding Company
Indian rupee loan from holding co.(refer note 5 below)

Dehentures

5,200 (31 Mareh 2017: 5,200 and 31 March 2106: 5,200), 10.75% Optionally Convertible Redeemable
Drebentures of Rs. 160,000 each issued at par {(unsecured) {refer note 6 below)

Total Nen-current bereowings

Secured
Unsccured

Notes:

Asat
1 Apeil 2016

- 30.00 -
200.00 - -
1.08 292 -
2500 - -
520.00 520.00 520.00
746.08 552,92 526,00
201.03 32.92 -
545,00 520.00 520.00

1. ‘The Indian Rupees Term Ioan from Axis Finance Limited was laken during the year ended 31 March 2017 and casries interest @ 11.25 % pa. The facility has been iaken fora
period of 5 year and is repayable in 14 equal quarterly instalments, beginning (rom June 2018. The facility has been sceared against: (i} second pasi passu charue on both present and

future current and fixed assets of the Company. The same has been repaid during year ended 31 March 2018,

[

Workina Capital Loan of Rs. 170 millions from RBL Bank taken during the year and is camying an inlerest rate of 9.15 % p.a. repayable in 12 quarterly instalments starting [rom
g Lap ¥ pity: q ]

May-2018. The Joan is secured by way of (i) First pari passu charge on entire existing and future ewrrent assets (i) First pari passu charge over the cntire existing and fulure fixed

asset of the Cornpany, and (iii) Corporate Guarantee of S Chand and Company Limited.

2A. Loan Equivalent Ratio {LER) facility of Rs. 3¢ milliens from RBL Bank taken during the year and is carrying an interest vate of 4,78 % p.a. repayable on demand . The foan is
secured by way of (1) First pari passu charge on enlire existing and future current assets (i} First pari passu charge over entire existing and future fixed assel of the Company, and

(it} Corporate Guarantee of S Chand and Company Limited.

3. Vehicle loan from HOFC bank has taken during the year, secured by way of hypothecation of respective vehicle in favour of the bank. 1t easries interest rate of 9.36% p.a. The lean is

repayable in 60 equat monthly instalments inelusive of interest Rs. C.04 million cach beginning from May 2016

=

catries interest rate of 9.8% p.a. The loan is repayable in 36 equal monthly instalments inclusive of interest Rs. 0.13 millions each beginning from May 2016.

w

Vehicle loan trom Daimler Financial Services India Private Limited bank has taken during the year, secured by way of hypothecation of respective vehicle in favour of the bank. It

The Company has taken a loan of Rs.30 millions fram Holding company (S Chand and Company Limiled) during the year ended 31 March 2018 and camies inlerest @ 11.25% pa.

The facility will be convertible at the option of the company after 1 year and if no! converted on of afler 3 year, the loan shall be repaid by the company on completion of 3 year. The

Company has repaid Rs 5 miftions during the year.

6 13.25% Debentures are redecmable al par at the end of 5 year from the date of allotment, viz., 15 May 2014. The debenture holder has an opfion to convert these debentures carlier,
lowever, no conversion will take place before the end of 18 months from the date of alloiment or till the time the original sharcholder cease to be sharcholder in the Company,
whichover is later, The original shareholder ceased to be shareholder in the Company w.e.f. 09 March 2016, Effective from August 2017, the debenture holder have revised the
coupon rate to 10.75% . The conversion shall be on 2 share market value of the share on the date of such intended conversion.

* [This space hws been intentionally keft bankf
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11B.

Current borrowings
(Rs. in millions)

As at As af As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Curreni maturity of fong term borrowings
Vehicle Loan

Tndian rupee loan from bank (secured} 1.85 1.68 -
Tota! Current maturity of Indian currency loan 1.85 1.68 -
Cash Credit

Indian rupee loan from bank (secured) {refer note 1, 1A & 1B below) 260.68 §22.49 117.16

Working capital demand loan

Indian rupee loan from bank (secured) (refer note 2 below) 50.00 110.08 -
Total current borrowings 312,53 234.17 117.16
Less: Ameunt presenied under "other financial liabilities" (1.85) (1.68) -
Net current borrowings 310,68 23249 117.16
Sccured 310,68 232.49 117.16
Unsecured ' - - -

Notes:

Cash Cregit from HDFC bank is carvying an interest rate of 11.75% p.a, (31 March 2017: 11.85% p.a.) repayable on demand. The loan is secured by way of
(i) first pari passu charge on entire existing and future current assets (if) first pari passu charges on entire existing and future movable fixed asset of the
Company and (iii) Corporate Guarantee of S Chand and Company Limited. )

Cash Credit from DBS bank is carrying an interest rate of 10.95% p.a. (31 March 2017 : 9.50% p.a.) repayable on demand. The loan is secured by way of (i)

" first pari passu charge on entire existing and future cusrent assets (ii) first pari passu charge on entire existing and fature movable fixed asset of the Company

12.

and (iii} Corporate Guarantee of S Chand and Company Limited.

. Cash Credit fom Kotak Mahindra bank is faken during the vear and is carrying an interest rate of 9.50% p.a. repayable on demand. The loas is secured by

way of (i} ficst pars passu charge on entire existing and future current assets (ii} first pari passu charge over the entire existing and future mevable fixed asset of
the Company and {ii) Corporate Guarantee of 8 Chand and Company Limited.

Cash Credit/Working capital demand loan of Rs. 50 millions from RBL Bank taken during the year and is carying an interest rate of 9.10 % p.a. repayable on
demand. The loan is secured by way of (i) First pari passu charge on entire existing and future current asseis (i) First pari passu charge over the entire existing
and futere movable fixed asset of the Company {iii) Corporate Guarantee of S Chand and Company Limited.

Trade payables
{Rs. in millions)

Asat As at Asat
31 March 2018 3t March 2017 1 April 2016

"Noo-Current

Trade payables other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 649 9.35 6.21
Current

TFrade payables of micro enterprises and smalf enterprises (refer note 34) - - -
Trade payables of related entities (refer note 32¢) 185.20 324,44 18731
Trade payabies other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 338.65 230.74 293.23
Total trade payables 530.34 564.53 487.35

Current o 523.85 555.18 481.14
Non-Curvent : By .49 . 9.35 6.21




New Saraswati House {India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statement as at 31 March 2018
CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

13. Other financial linbilities
(Rs. in millions)
As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2817 1 April 2016

Current maturity of long term borrowings (refer note | |13 above) 1.85 1.68 -
Interest accrued and duc on debentures - - 25.84
Inlerest accrued and due on current borrowings 3.78 - -
Tnlerest accrued but not duc on current borrowings - 0.60 141
Total 5.63 2,28 27.25
Current ) 5.63 2.28 27.25

Non current - - -

14. Provisions
(Rs, in miliions})
As at As at As at
31 March 2008 31 March 2017 T April 2016

Provision for gratuity (Norn Current) 12.71 11.79 15.22
Provision for gratuity (Current) - - 0.17
Provision for leave encashment (Current) 4.065 4.36 4.17
Provision for income tax (net of advance tax) 25.28 - 3498
Total 42.04 16.15 54.54
Curvent 29.33 4.36 39.32
Nonr current 12,71 11.79 15,22

15, Other Lahilities
(Rs, in millions)
As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Other payables:

Statutory dues 22.31 1425 10.96
Creditor for capital expenditure * - 1.83 7.63
Advance from customer 10.37 13.05 6.39
Total 32.68 2913 24,98
Current . 32.68 29.13 24.98

Non current - - -

*Consist of Rs.Nil (31 March 2017 - Rs. 1.83 millions and 1 Aprit 2016 : Rs. 6.52 millions) payable to related party {refer note 32¢ for
details)
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16. Revenue from operations
‘ (Rs. in millions}
For the year ended For the year ended
31 Marveh 2018 31 March 2017
Sale of products
Finished goods 1,608.74 1,366.47
Traded goods 0.47 1.31
Less: Turmover discount (37.86) 22.47)
1,571.35 1,345.31
Other operating revenue
Scrap sales 5.70 2.07
‘Total revenue from operations 1,577.03 1,347.38
Details of products solid
Finished goods sold
Books (published titles) 1,608.74 1,366.47
Traded goods sold
Books (tities not published) 047 i.31
1,609.21 1,367.78
17. Other incomes
17.1 Finance income
Interest income on bank depaosit 0.00 0.00
Interest income other 0.14 -
Interest income on security deposit 1.15 1,41
Total finance income 1.29 1,11
17.2 Other income
Forcign exchange differences (net) 0.32 -
Miscellaneous income 0.01 -
Miscelizneous amount written back 3.57 -
Duty drawback - 0.0%
Profit on sale of assets 0,14 -
Total other income 0.01

Grand total
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18.

20.

Cost of published goeds/raw material consumed

{Rs. in millions)

For the year ended  For the year ended
3F March 2018 31 March 2017

inventories at the beginning of the year

Add : Purchases of pubiished books during the year
Add : Purchases of paper during the year

Add : Purchases of CD during the vear

Less : Inventories at the end of the year (refer note ¢)
Cost of published goods/material consumed

Details of raw material purchased
Taper

Bocks

CD

. Purchase of traded boaks

2.83 10.69
32320 . 561.05
284.09 10.71
121 28.58
61533 611.03
{36.68) (2.84)
578.65 508.19
288.09 1071
32320 561.05
121 28.58
612,50 600.34"

{Rs. in millions}

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 Maveh 2017

Traded books

{Increase)/decrease in invenlories

1.26 1.24

1.26 1.24

{Rs. in millions)

Tor the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods (refer note 6)

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods
(Inereasc)/decrease in inventories

Details of inventories

. 336.44 443.65
33644 443.65
443,65 375.21
443.65 375.21
07.21 (68.44)

For the year ended TFor the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Finished goods
- Manufactured goods
Books

336.44 443.65

~336.44 443.65
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21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

Publication expenses

{Rs. in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2018

TFor the year ended
31 March 2017

Printing, binding and processing charges
Royalty expenses

Freight and cartage expenses

Total

Employee benefifs expenses

26.92 16.73
68.77 60.25
16.77 11.50
106.46 88.48

{Rs. in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2617

Salaries, wages and bonus

Employec stock option expense
Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuily expense (refer note 30)

Staff welfare expenses

Totad

Selling and distribution expenses

22584 20236
G.70 0.50
15.84 13.14
8.57 5.8%
5.59 8.23
2506.64 230.12

{Rs. in mitlions)

Tor the year ended
31 Mareh 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Advertisement, publicity and exhibition
Fravelling and conveyance

Freight and distribution

Packing cxpenses

Vehicle running and mainienance
Total

Finance cost

46.50 38.48
49.88 40.25
28.70 19.23
1040 5.62
1.80 2.43
137.28 106.01

(Rs. in miilions)

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Interest

- On debentires

- On cash eredit and working capital demand loan
- On term loan

- On vehicle loan

- On other

Bank charges

Processing fees - bank loan

Taotal

Depreciation and amertisation expenses

60.23 68.90
2223 24.65
1325 L1
6.37 048
4.08 0.16
0.06 0.15
0.91 .31
101.13 96.76

{1s. in millions}

Tor the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 vlareh 2017

Drepreciation of property, plant & equipment
Amorlisation of intangible assets
Total

7.80 13.59
2541 27.32
33,21 40.91
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26, Other expenses

(Rs. in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Tor the year ended
31 March 2017

Communication cost
Reat
Lease rent-vehicles
Rates and taxes
[nsurance
Repair and maintenance -

~Plant & machinery

-Buildings

-Other
Printing and stationery
Lepal and professional foe
Payment 1o auditor (refer note below)
Water and electricity charges
Office expenses
Security cxpenses
Membhership and subscription
Website design charges
Corporate social responsibility expenses { refer note 41)
Recruitment charges
Bad debts written off
Provision [or bad & doubtful debis
Loss on sate of fixed assets (net)
Loss on insurance claim receivable
Miscellaneous expenses ’
Tatal

Payment to auditor

13.48 13.09
40.33 39.87
- 1.67
.04 0.57
2,50 165
0.36 0.28
0.72 119
4.57 339
3.00 1.94
(198 10.83
2.10 1.82
4.12 410
14.92 (8.37
436 310
0.25 017
0.09 031
200 1.01
0.98 035
- 5,59

- 2.90

- 117

- 0.27
3.30 4.13
10910 117.18

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year endeid
31 Mavch 2017

As anditor
Audit fee

2.19 1.82
2.10 1.82
27, Components ‘of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
The disaggregation of changes in other comprehensive income by cach type of equity is shown below:
During the year ended 31 March 2018
Retained earnings Total
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 2.65 2.65
Tax impact on re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benelit plans (0.77) (0.77)
1.88 1.88
During the vear ciled 31 March 2017
Retained earnings Total
Re-measurement gains/(losscs) on defined benefit plans (1.27) {1.27)
Tax impact on re-measurement gains/(iosses) on defined benefit plans 0.44 D.44
(0.83) (0.83)
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29,

29h,

Earunings per shave )
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holder by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year. '

Diluted EPS amounts are caiculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable 10 equity holder by the weighted average number of equity
shares ontstanding ducing the year plus the weighted averape number of equity shares that would be issued or conversion of all dilutive

potential equity shares into equity shares,

The following refiects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations

For the yeir ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2617

Profit attribwiable 1o equity holder of the Company for computing basic EPS 98.32 83.30
98.32 83,30

Profil atributable to éqniry holder of the Company for computing diluted EPS .
Net profit as above 98.32 83.30
Add: Interest on debentures (net ofla.\:) 39.39 45.06
137.71 128.36

Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing -

- Basic EPS 26,5060 20,500
- Diluted EPS 27,000 27,000
Basic EPS 4796 4,064
Ziluted EPS 4,796 4,064

Inceie taxes

For the year endfed
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Income tax charged to statement of profit and loss

Current income tax charge 52.78 22.06
Income tax adjustiment related to earlier year 5.64 -
Deferred tax charge (5.30) 22.6%
53.12 44,75
[ncome tax charged to other comprehensive income
Expenses (benefit) on re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined bensfit plans (G.77) 0.44
(0.77) 0,44

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017;

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Accounting profit’ before tax 151.44 128.05
Profit/(loss) before tax from a discontinued operations - -
Accounting profit before income tax 151,44 128.03
At India's statutory income tax rate of 34.608% {31 March 2016: 34.608%) 52.41 44.32
Others (1.23} 043
Interest wfs 2348, & 2348 1.94 -
Incoine lax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 53,12 44,75
ps
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30 Gratuity and ether post- employment benefits plan
The Company has a defined benelit gratuity plan. Under the gratuity plan, cvery employee who has completed at least five year of service gets a gratily on
departure at 15 days of last drawn satary for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six monihs subject to a maximum of Rs. 2 millions. The
scheme is fimded with an insurance company in the form of qualifying insurance policy.

The following tables summarize the components of act benefit expense recognised in the profit and loss sccount and amounts recogmized m the balance sheet for
Gratuity Plan. :

- Statement of Prefit & Loss account
Net employee benelit expense recognised in employee Cost:

For the year ended  For the year ended
3¢ March 20£8 31 Mareh 2017

Current service cost | 6.47 4.81
Past service cost ' 1.24 -
Interest cost on detined obligation 1.59 1.08
Interest income on plan asset ) {(6.73) -

Expeeted retum on plan assets - .
8.57 5.89

Amount recopnised in Other Comprehensive [ncome;

Tor the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligation (3.07) 1.26
Actuarial gains / (losscs} on asscts 0.42 061
{2.65) 1.27

Balantce sheet
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Opening defined benefit obligation 21.78 15.39
Current service cost . 6.47 4.8}
Past Service Cost 1.24 -
Interest caost . 1.59 1.08
Benefits paid {01.93) (0.76}
Actuarial {gains) / losses on obligation {3.07) 1.26
Closing defined henefit obligation 27.08 21,78
Current - -
Non - carrent 27.08 21,78

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended
31 pMareh 2618 31 March 2017

Qpening [ir value of plan asseis 9.99 -
Expected return : 0.73 -
Contributions by employer 500 10.00
Benefits paid (0.93) -
Actuarial gain/(loss) (0.42) (0.01)
Closing fair value of plane assets 14.37 9.99

The Company expects to contribute Rs. .38 millions to gratuity in this year (31 March 2017: nil}

The major categories of plan assets as a pereentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2018 38 March 2017
Investments with insurer 100% 100%

The economic and demographic assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the company’s plans are shown below:

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Discount rate 1.10% 7.35%
Hxpected rate of return on asseis 8.00% 8.00%
Espected rate of salary increase 10.00% 10.00%
Retirement Age (In year) 60 year 60 year
Employee tumover -

-~ Age uplo 30 year : 3.00% 3.00%

- Age 31 - 44 year : 2.00% 2.00%

- Age above 44 year : : 1.00% 1.80%
Mortality Rate LIC {1994-56) LIC (1994-96}

Ulimale Ultimate

The estimates of fufure salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factor, such as supply
and demand in the employment market.

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to theperiod over which the obligation is to
be settied.
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31

3.

The impact of sensitivity analysis due to changes in the significant actuarial assumptions on the defined benefit obligations is given in below table:

For the year  For the year

ended 31 ended 31
Change in pti March 2018 _ March 2017
Discount rate +1% 23.02 18.40
-1% 32,12 26.00
Expected rate of salary increase +1% 31.66 25.25
- 1% 23.20 16.59
The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of ble changes in key ion

occurring at the end of the reporting period.
Leases
Operating lease: company as lessee

The Company has taken premises for office and storage use under cancellable and non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The total lease rentals recognized as an expense during the year
under the above lease agreements aggregates to Rs. 40.33 millions. (March 31, 2017: Rs. 39.87 millions). There are no restrictions imposed by the lease agreements. There are no sub leases.

(Rs. in millions)

Further minimum rental payable under non-cancellable operating lease are as follows :
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Within one year 32.02 26.28 26.48
After one year but not more than five year 140.34 130.29 102.90
After five year 21.90 15.85 54.21
Related party disclosure

Names of related parties and related party relationship

Related parties where control exists
Holding Company S Chand and Company Limited (Formerly S Chand and Company Private Limited)

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the vear

Enterprises under same control : Nirja Publisher & Printer Private Limited
: Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
: Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited
: DS Digital Private Limited
: BPI (India) Private Limited
: Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited (w.e.f 5 December 2016)

Key management peronnel : Love Kumar Kathuria, Director (till 31 July 2016)
¢ Kuldeep Chand Ganjwal, Director
: Ratna Mehta, Director
- Dinesh Kumar Jhunihnuwala, Director (w.e.f 31 July 2016)
: Himanshu Gupta (W.e.f. 20 May 2016)
+ Ankita Gupta (W.e.f. 20 May 2016)
: Archana Capoor (W.e.f. 20 May 2016)
Al Nishchal (W.e.f. 20 May 2016}

Enterprise over which Key Management Personnel exercise significant influence : SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited
: Hotel Tourist

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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b)

Related party transactions

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties during the period/year:

(Rs. in millions)
Holdi Enterprise En:(erp;l:e szl wnidl Key Relative of
Transaction during the year ended Year ended og under same ¥y PANpr managerial key managerial Total
company totitrol Personnel exercise personnel personnel
significant influence

Sale of books

Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited 31 March 2018 - 016 . - 0.16
31 March 2017 - 0.09 - 0.09

Sale of paper

Vikas publishing House Private Limited 31 March 2018 - . = 2 -
31 March 2017 1.93 - - - 193

Purchase of books

S Chand and Company Limited 31 March 2018 0.05 - - - - 0.05
31 March 2017 0.08 - - - - 0.08

Niria Publisher & Printer Private Limited 31 March 2018 # 487 - - 4.87
31 March 2017 - 44.46 - - 44.46

Vikas publishing House Private Limited 31 March 2018 - 52.00 = 52.00
31 March 2017 - 38462 - 384.62

Job Work- Binding & Printing

Niria Publisher & Printer Private Limited 31 March 2018 - 12.68 - - 12.68
31 March 2017 - - - N

Vikas publishing House Private Limited 31 March 2018 - 104.68 - - 104.68
31 March 2017 - - - - - -

Printing charges paid

Vikas publishing House Private Limited 31 March 2018 - 0.00 - - 0.00
31 March 2017 - 0.01 - - - 0.01

Staff welfarc expenses

Hotel Tourist 31 March 2018 - - * X
31 March 2017 = - 1.68 1.68

SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited 31 March 2018 - - 1.61 - Lel
31 March 2017 - - - - =

Tour & Travel Expenses

Hotel Tourist 31 March 2018 - - = 5
31 March 2017 - - 0.01 - 0.01

SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited 31 March 2018 - - 031 0.31
31 March 2017 = - - i z

Legal and professional

Safan Digital Education Imitiatives Private Limited 31 March 2018 613 - 6.13
31 March 2017 - 687 - - = 6.87

Interest on Debenture

S Chand and Company Limited 31 March 2018 60.23 - - 60.23
31 March 2017 68.90 = - - e 68.90

Interest on Term Loan

S Chand and Company Limited 31 March 2018 4.38 - - - 4.38
31 March 2017 - - - - =

Advertisement, publicity and exhibition

Vikas publishine House Private Limited 31 March 2018 - - - .
31 March 2017 - 6.05 - - 6.05

Rent expenses

SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited 31 March 2018 9.84 9.84
31 March 2017 - 9.62 * 9.62

Ankita Gupta 31 March 2018 - - 0.40 0.40
31 March 2017 = - - z =:

Other expenses paid (reimbursement)

§ Chand and Company Limited 31 March 2018 0.66 - 0.66
31 March 2017 0.48 - N 048

Ankita Gupta 31 March 2018 - - 0.51 0.51
31 March 2017 - - - 0.55 0.55

Fixed assets purchased

Vikas publishing House Private Limited 31 March 2018 - = 5

( ible assets-Content D )
31 March 2017 345 - - . 345

DS Digital Private Limited 31 March 2018 0.74 - - 0.74

[§ assets - Content
31 March 2017 z S . . - -

Loan availed during the vear

S Chand and Company Limited 31 March 2018 7250 - - - - 7250
31 March 2017 - - - - =

Loan repaid during the year

S Chand and Company Limited 31 March 2018 47.50 - - - 4150
31 March 2017 - - - - 2

Fixed assets Sold

Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited 31 March 2018 0.11 - - - 0.11
31 March 2017 021 - - - 0.21

Corpotare guarantee

S Chand and Company Limited 31 March 2018 510.68 - - - 510.68
31 Margh 2017 232,49 s u 5 - 232.49

Employee stock option expense

S Chand and Company Limited 31 March 2018 0.70 - - - 0.70
31 March 2017 0.50 - = - - 0.50

Director remuneration

Ankita Gupta 31 March 2018 5 - 3.60 - 3.60
31 March 2017 - - 300 = 3.00

Kuldeep Chand Ganiwal 31 March 2018 - - - - - -
31 March 2017 = - 011 - 0.11
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c) Outstanding balances at the period/vear end

Rs. in milli
Enterprise over which
ez ) Holding Enterprise Key Management Key _ Felntlvn of
ion during the year ended Year ended e under same Pivbinas) svach managerial key managerial Total
S control ontenE o personnel personnel
Trade pavable
S Chand and Company Limited 31 March 2018 8.89 - g 8.89
31 March 2017 8.09 - - = - 8.09
1 April 2016 13.36 - g - 13.36
Niria Publisher & Printer Private Limited 31 March 2018 - 15.76 - . 15.76
31 March 2017 - 40.21 - 40.21
1 April 2016 - 16.59 - = 16.59
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 31 March 2018 - 158.68 - - 158.68
31 March 2017 - 27540 - - z 275.40
1 April 2016 154.71 . & 154.71
Hotel Tourist 31 March 2018 - - = - % -
31 March 2017 - - 029 - - 0.29
1 April 2016 - 0.21 - & 0.21
SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited 31 March 2018 - 0.34 - - 0.34
31 March 2017 - 0.00 - ¢ 0.00
I April 2016 - 0.10 - 0.10
Atul Gupta 3] March 2018 - - - &
31 March 2017 - - - -
1 April 2016 - - 0.06 0.06
Kuldeep Chand Ganjwal 31 March 2018 ¥ # & = =
31 March 2017 - - - #:
1 April 2016 - - - 0.06 - 0.06
Other liabilities: Creditor for capital expenditure
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited 31 March 2018 E 1.52 - - E 1.52
31 March 2017 - 0.44 =} = - 0.44
1 April 2016 - 2.83 - 2 g 283
DS Digital Private Limited 31 March 2018 - - - - < =
31 March 2017 - 1.83 - - - 1.83
1 April 2016 - 6,52 3 - 6.52
Trade receivable
Safari Dimtal Education Initiatives Pvt Ltd 31 March 2018 - 0.11 . - - 0.11
31 March 2017 - - - - - =
1 April 2016 - - - =
Loans & advances to related partics
BPI (India) Private Limited 31 March 2018 - 0.16 - - 0.16
31 March 2017 - 0.16 - 0.16
1 April 2016 - 0.24 - - - 0.24
Security deposit
SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited 31 March 2018 - 420 = 4.20
31 March 2017 - 420 = 4.20
1 April 2016 & = 420 - = 4.20
Ankita Gupta 31 March 2018 - - - - 0.1% 0.19
31 March 2017 - - - 0.19 0.19
1 April 2016 - = 0.19 0.19
Borrowing
§ Chand and Company Limited 31 March 2018 520.00 - - - 520.00
31 March 2017 520,00 - - - 520.00
1 April 2016 520.00 - - - = 520,00
Short term loan
S Chand and Company Limited 31 March 2018 25.00 - - 25.00
31 March 2017 - - - <
1 April 2016 - - - - = z
Interest accrued and due on borrowings
§ Chand and Company Limited 31 March 2018 378 2 - - - 3.78
31 March 2017 - - - - - -
1 Apnil 2016 25.84 - - - - 25.84
(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
P
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Capital & other commitments

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 t April 2016
Te be executed on eapital account and not provided for (net of advanees) 034 vAG 6.56
Details of dues to micro, small and medizm enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

3! March 2018 31 March 217 L April 2016

The principat amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown scparaicly) remaining unpaid to any supplier as al the end of

cach accounting year
- Principa! amount dac ko micro and small enterprises - - -
- Interest due on above - - .

The amount ol interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the - - -
pavment made (e the supplier bevond the appointed day dering each accounting year.

“The amounl of intcrest due and pavable for the period of defay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond ihe - - -
appointed day during the year) but withowt adding the interest specified under the M3 Act 2006,

The amount of further interest remaining due and pavable even in the succeeding year, untit sueh dite whea the intercst ducs - - -
as abave are actually paid 10 the small enterprise for the purpose of disaliowancs os o deductibls cxpenditure wicler seotion 23
of the MEMED Act 2006

. EInhedged Forcign currency exposure

The amoum of foreign camency exposure that ars not hedged by derivative instrment or othenvise as ga 31 March 2018, 31 March 2017 and | April 2016 arc as undcr:

Particutar Forcign turrenc Amount in foreign currency {Rs. in millions)
Arie oreie ol 31 Marck 2618 31 March 30171 Aprit 2006 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 Apsil 2016
Trade Receivables usk 003 0.03 .03 182 192 2.18
Exchange Rate used per USD . 65,04 64.75 66.28
Expenditure in foreigs currency (accrual basis)
31 March 2918 3t March 2017 1 April 2016
Advenising and sates pronotion .00 1.93 1.34
3.00 1.93 1.4
Farnings in forcign corrency
3t March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Exports of F.0.B. Value 1.1% 137 2.01
1.37 2.01
tmpaorted and indigenaus raw materials consumel
. . Percentage {%) {Rs. in mitlions)
Raw Malerials 31 March 2038 31 March 2057 Y Aprig 2016 3¢ March 2018 31 March 2047 L April 2016
Imported % 0% W% - - -
Indigcnous 160% 100%, 100% 288.09 1071 67.79

Seament reporting

Ind AS 108 csteblishes standards for the way (hat companies reporl information abont operating segments and related disclosures about products and serviees and major customers. The Company's
cperations pre-dominantly relale to publishing of books. The Clicf Operating Decision Maker {CODM) evaluates the Company's performance aad allocates resources based on analysis of varous
performance indfeatoss pertaining to business as a single segment. Accordingly, the aimeunts appearing in the financial statements relute ta the Company’s single business segment.

Contingent liabilities
The company does not have any centingent liability as at 33 March 2018 (31 March 2017: Nil and § April 2816: Nil)
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The Company has contributed Rs. 2 millions for the vear end 31 March 2018 ( 31 March 2017 : Rs.1.01 millions} oul of the teta! contribulable smounl of Rs. 328 millions (31 March 2017 : 3.2% millions) as
ol 31 March 2018 in sccordance with Section 133 read with schedule VII 1o Qe companies Act 2013, 10 a society Invelved in promoting zducation, including special education and employment crhancement -
voeational skill specially among children and students.

Sigaificant customer - .
Revenue from one major customer accousled for amounting to Rs. 184.38 millions aggregating te 10% of total revenue {two major customers amounting 181,77 millicn aggrepaling to 13% of lotal
revenue for the sear ended 31 March 2017). e
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Financial [nstruments:- Financial rislk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilitics, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables . The main purpose of [hese financial tiabilities is (o finance the
Company’s opcrations. The Company’s principal Gnancial assets include advances to related party, trade and other receivables, scewity deposits, cash and short-term
deposits that derive directly o ils operations.

The Company is exposed o market risk, credit risk and fiquidity nsk. The Company’s senfor nmanagement overseas the nmnagenent of these tisks and advisss on
financial risks and the appropriate firancial risk govermance framework for the Company, The board provides assurance to the shareholder's that the Company’s
financial risk activitics are govemned by appropidate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company's policies and risk objectives. The Board of Director reviews and agrees policies for managing cach of these risks, which are summarised below. '

Market Risl

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash fows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

Market risk comprises three types of osk:-

a.) [nterest rate risk,

b.) currency tisk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and

¢.) commodity risk.

Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowines. investments. deposits. advances and derivative financial instruments,

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017,

The sensitivity analyscs have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratie of floating to fixed intorest rates of the debt and derivatives and the
proportion of financial instruments in loreign currencics are all constant in place at 31 March 2018,

‘The amalyses exclode the inpact of movements in market variables en: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions. The sensitivity

af tha relavant nrafit or lnce item ie tha nffert af the acsimed chanees In reeneetive market ricka

Interest rate risk.

Inferest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fiture cash Sows of a financial instrument will fuctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Compiuny’s
expostire to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with fixed interest rates,

The tollowing tabls demonstrates the sensilivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affscted, after the impact of
ledge accounting. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on tloating rate borrowings, as follows:

Increase/decrense  Effect on profit Effect on
in hasis points before tax equity (QCI}
As at 31 March 2018 -
TDiomowings 10.5% 5.2¢% -
-0.5% (5.29) -
As at 31 ¥arch 2017
Borrowings +0.5% 3.94 -
-6.5% (3.94) -
As atl April 2016
Borrowings +0.5% 3.19 -
-0.5% {3.19) -

Foreign currency risk

Foreign cuency risk is the risk that the fair value or fitture cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's
cxposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relaies primasily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign
currency’}

The Company does not hedge its foreign currency cxposure, however the sensitivily analysis is given as below for the currencies, in which Company has foreign
exposure; :

Changes in foreign  Effect on profid Effect on
currency rafes before tax equity (OCI)
For the year ended March 31, 2018 !
USD +5% .09 -
~5% (0.09) -

For the year ended March 31, 2017
UshH 0.10 -

{0.10} -
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that commicrparty will not neet its obligations under a tinancial instriment or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company is not exposed to any sigmificant eredil risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables), meluding deposits with banks and financial
mslitutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments, ’

The Ageing analysis of trade receivables (pross) as of the repotting date is as follows:

Age Bracket Mot Due 0 - 215 Days 216-365 Days 366- 730 Days | More than 730 Days Total

As at 1 April 2016 920,22 30.63 33.96 8.61 - 993,42
Ags at 31 March 2037 ) i,1i1.25 78.94 21.87 5.76 1.83 1,219,65
As at 3] March 2018 : 1,470.00 114,83 33.05 15.84 3.32 1,577.04

Liguility Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounier difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financia} assct. The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance betwween continnity of fnding and Aexibility through the use
of bank overdrafts, and bank loans. The company's approach to managing fiquidity to ensure , as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liguidily o meet
its liability when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, withoul incurring unacceplable losses or risking damage to the Company's
reputation. The Company closely monitor its liguidity posilion and deploys a robust cash management system. The Company manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves, borrewing Habilities, by continuously monitoring forccast and actual cash flows, prefile of financial assets and liabilitics. it
maintain adequate sources of financing inclading loans from banks at an optimised cost. The table below provides the details regarding contractual
maturitics of financial labilitics.

As at Asat As
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 I April 2016

On Demand
- Borrowings 746.08 532.92 520.00

746.08 552,92 520.09
Less than 1 year
- Borrowings 310.68 23249 117.16
- Trade payables 523,85 555.18 481.14
- Other financial liabilities 5.63 228 27.25

840.16 789.95 625,55
More than 1 year
- Trade payabics 549 .35 6.21

6,49 %35 6,21

Capital- management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, cupital inchudss issued equily capital and all other equily reserves attribuiable to me equity holder
ol the company. ‘The primary abjective of the Company’s capital managsment is to maximise the shargholder value,

The Company secks to maintain a balance between the higher retims that might be possibe with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
secunity afforded by a sound capital position, The primary objective of the company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company monitor capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt, The Company’s policy is to keep the gearing
ratio less than 60%. The Company measures underlying net debdt as total liabilitics, comprising interest bearing loans and borrowings, excluding any dues to
subsidiaries or group companies less cash and cash cquivalents. For (he purpose of capital management, total capital includes issued equity eqmry capital,
share premium and ali other reserves attributable to the eauity holder of the Company., as applicable.

Company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio as at 31 March 2018 is as follow:

Geaving Ratio Asat Asat As at
>earing 31 March 2018 31 Mirch 2017 1 April 2016

Borrewings (Note 11A & 11B) 1,056.76 78541 637.16
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 5C) (116.36) (43.04) (39.19)
Adjusted Net debt (A) 940.40 74237 597.97
Faquily $55.07 554.17 471.20
Total equity {B) 655,07 55497 471.20
Total equitly and net debt {C = (A+B)] 1,595.47 1,296,54 1,069.17
Gearing Ratie (A/C) 58.91% 57.26% 55.93%

in order to achieve ihis overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it ineets findncial covenants
altached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requizemenis. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would pennit
the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial coverants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in
the current year.

No changes were made in the objectives, poticies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017.
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45, Fair value of Financial asscts and liabilities

Set out below, is a comparison by class of e carying amoinits ard fair valus of the compony's financials insimmients, other than thesc with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of
Fair values:

31 March 2018 3 March 2017 31 March 2016

Amortized Cost  FVIPL FVTOCI Amartized Cost FVTPL FVTOCH Amortized Cost  FVIPL  FVTOCL
Assets
Non Carreat Financhal assets
- Loans 14.30 - - 336 - - 9,05 - -
- Other fimancial assels 008 - - 003 - - 08 - -
Curvent Financial assets
- Trade recenvables - - 119530 - - 969,16 - -
- Loans - - 2807 - - 3680 -
- Cash and cash equivalenls - - 43.04 B - 3919 -
Liabitities
Non Curreat Financial liabilities
- Bomowings 46,08 - - 352,92 - - 320.00 - B
- Trade payabics 649 - - 9.33 - - 6.2l - -
Current Financial liabilizies
- Berrowings 3068 - - 23249 - - 117.16 - -
- Trade payablcs 52385 . - 33518 - - 48114 . -
- Oller Mnancial liabikitics 563 - - 228 - - 27,25 - -

The fallowing assnmplions? methods were used §o estimate the fair values:

(i) The fair valucs of Irade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other current financial assets, trade payable and other current financial labil
due Lo thair short lerm nature,

s are considered to be same as fheir carnving values

(i) Fair vahue of quoted financial instruments is based on quoted market price al the reporting date.

{iii) The Company classifics alf its fnancial assets and financial liabilitics to be meastired at amortised cosl. Hence the company has nol classified its financial istruments into three levels of fair volue
measurcments hierarehy in accordance with the relevant Indian Accounting Standard,

46. Employee siock compensation
T 2012, the ullimate hotding company instituled the ESOP Scheme 2012 {the “ESOP 2012"}. Under the ESCP plan, the commitice may peant awards of equity based stock options teing Growth
options te lie smployecs of ulimate holding company and its subsidiarics. As per the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 102 “Share based payments”, the Company reeciving the services shall
mcasure the services received as an equily seltled transaction and required fo record compensation cosl and disclose information refaling to the sharcs granted to the employees of the Company,
under the above Plan, Since, the plan is assessed, managed and administered by the ultimate holding company, the Company has taken stock oplion cosl pertains (o options granted io the employee
of the Company as calewtated by Ihe ulimate holding Company under Tnd AS 102,

4

3

, Significant acconnting judgements, estimates ind assumptions -
The preparation of the Company's financin} staterttents in conforminy with the Indion Accouniing Standards requircs {10 ke jud, estimates and assumplions that offect the
reported amounls of revenuss, expenses, asscis and liabilies, and the accompanying disclosures tincluding conlingent liabilitics). The managment believes that the estimates vsed in preparation of
the furancial statements are prudent and reasonable, Uneentainly about these assumptions and estimates could result in outeomes it require a material adjustment to the camying amount of assets
or Babtlities affected in future perieds.

A Judgements

Tn the process of applying lhe Company's accounting policics, nt has made the lollowing judgements, which have the most sigmficant elfeet on he amounts recognised in the financial
slaements:

Dperating lease commitients— Company as a lessee

The Company has entered ino lease agrecments wilh kessor and has determined, based on an evalualion ul' the lerms and conditions of the armangenents, such as the lease term not constituling a
major part of the cconomic life of the commercial property and 1he fair value of the assct, that it does ot zetains the significanl risks and rewards of ownership of these propertics and secounts for
the conlracts as operating leases.

B, Estimates and assumplions

Fhe key assumplions concerning the Tuture and other key sources of estimation uneertainty at the reporting date, thal have a signilieant visk oi‘causmg a material adjustmicnt {0 1he carrying amounts
of asscls and liabilitics within the next finaeial year, are deseribed below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the [nancial stwements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumplions about fisture developments, however, may change due to markel changes or circumstances arising that are beyvond the contrel of the Company, Such
chnges are reflected in the assumptions when they ocour. Estimates and underlying assumptions arc reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions te accounting estimates are recognised prospeclively.

‘Taxes
Deferred tax assels are Tecognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be avaflable against whick the Josses can be wiilised. Significant management judgement is required 1o
Jelermine the amounl of deferred 10x assets thal can be recognised, based upon the Tikely tming and the level of future taxable profils together with future tax planning stralegies.

Defined benelit plans (gratuity)

The cost of the defined benefit graluity plan ancl the present value of the gratuity cbligation ore determined using actuirial valualions, An actnariol vahation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actuat developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, fure salary increases and morality rales. Pue 10 the complexitics invalved m e
valuation and its long-term nature, 3 defined benafit obligation is highly sensilive lo changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at cach reporting date.

The parameter most subjcel © change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the managament considers the interesl rates of goverament bonds with term that cormespond
with the expected term of Ihe defined benelit ebligation.

The morlality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those martality tables tend (o change onfy al interval in response to demographic changes. Fulure solary increases and gratuity
ncreases are bassd on expected futnre inflation rates for the respestive countries.

Further details aboul gratuity obligations ara given in Note 30

Provisivn for decommissioning
In measuring the provision for sile restoration obligation, the Company uscs the teehnical estimales lo delermine the expecied cost of dismantling and removing he improvement or infrastricturs
for propentjes under lease. Discount rate are determined based on the govermment bond rate of a simitar period a5 the liabil

Provision for trade receivable
Trade receivables do not eacry any interest and arc stated at their nominal valuc as reduced by appropriate allowances for cstimated irrecoverable ameunts. Esimmicd irreeoverable amounts are
based on the ageing of s receivable balances and historieal experience adjusted for forward-looking estimales, Individual leade receivables are written off, 2n management decens thém nal o be
cellectible. For details of aliowance for doubtfst debts pleass refer Note 3A.
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Inzpnirment of non-fizancial assets

The carnying amounts of (e Company’s non-linancial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at the end of each reporting peried to determing whether there is any indication of
impaimment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estiniated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-peneraling unit (“CGUT) is the greater of ils value in use and s fair value tess costs (o sell. tn assessing value in use, the estimated fulure cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that rellects current market assessments of he lime valie of money and the risks specific (o the asset or CGU. Fer the purpose of

impairment testing, asscis that cannol be lested individually are grouped Logether into the smallest group of assets thal generates cash inflows [rom conlinaing vse that are largely indspendent of the
cash inflows of other assets er groups of assets (" CGU™.

Markel related information and estimales are used te detenmine lhe recoverble amount. Key assumiptions on which management has based its determination of recoverable amomn inciude
estimaled fong erm growth rales, weighted average cost of capital and estimated opcrating margins. Cash (low projestions lake fnlo account past expe
estimale about fulure developments,

ce and represent managernent’s best

First-time adoption of Ind AS

These financia} slatements, for the year ended 31 March 2018, are (he first the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For periods up o and including the year ended 31 March 2017,
the Company preparcd ils financial stademends in accordance with accounting standards notificd under scction 133 of the Companics Act 2013, read wgether willy paragraph 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Previous GAAP). Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS appficable for periods ending on 31 March 2018, together with
the comparalive period data as at andd for the year ended 31 March 2017, as deseribed in the summary of significant accounting policies. In prepanng these Baancial statements, the Company’s
opening balance sheet was prepared as at | April 2016, the Company’s date ol leansilion to Ind AS.

This note expiains excragptions availed by the Company in restating its Previous GAAD [nancial statements, including e b
the year ended 31 March 2017,

¢ sheel as ab | Aprit 2016 and the Mnancial statements as al and lor

Optional Exen:ptions Applied:
Tk AS 101 allows firsi-lime adopter certain exemptions [rom the retrospective application ol certain requirements under Ind A8, The Company has applied the following exemptions.

Deemed cost of Property, plant and equipment and Entangible asscts

ind AS 1! permits a frst-Gme adopter, where there is no change in functional currency, 1o clect to continue with the camying value for all ofits propeity, plant and cquipment as recoguised in the
Foanciol stalcments as al (he daie of tiansition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date ol transition afier making necessary adjustments for <le-
commissioning Habililics, This exemption can also be used lor Intangible asseis coverad by Ind AS 38 Tnlangible Assets,

Accordingly, the company has elected to measure ail of its property, plant and cquipment and intangiblz assats at their previous GAAP carying value.

Reconciliations

Foltowing reconcilintions along with ool noles for (e GAAP adiusiments is inserted:

- Reconciliation of equity as al | April 2016 {the date of transition to Tnd AS) (Annexure )
- Reconciliation of equity as al 31 Marck 2017 (Annexure Tka)

- Recanciliation af profit and loss for year ended 31 March 2017 {(Annexure [Ib}
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Annexure I - Reconciliation of equity as af I April 2016 (the date of trausition to Ind AS)

(Rs. in millions)

Foot ntotes Indian GAAP* Ind AS Adj Ind AS
Assets
Non-current assels
Property, plant and equipment 40.20 - 40,26
Intangible assets 4 205.28 - 205.28
Capital work-in-progress 4.24 - 424
Financial asseis
- Loans 1 11.40 (2.35) 905
- Other financial assets 0.08 B 0.08
Other non-current assels 1 1.23 1.37 2.60
Deferred tax assets {net) 3 10.43 5.1l 15.54
Total non-current assets 272.92 4.13 277.05
Current assets
inventories 353.63 32.25 385.90
Financial assets )
- Trade receivables 7 1,016.35 47.19 969.16
- Loans H 28.00 (0.25) 27,75
- Cash and cash equivalents 39.1% - 39.19 .
Other current assels 1 2.38 1.05 343
Total current assets 1,439.57 (1d.14) 1,425.43
Total asscts 1,712.49 {10.01) 1,702.48
Eguity and liabitities
Equity
Equity share capital 0.21 - 0.21
Cther equity
- Retained carnings 3 71.09 (1022} 60,87
- Dther reserves 409.91 0.21 41072
Total ciuity 481.21 (10.01) 471.20
Non-current lizbilities
Financial labilities
- Borrowings 520.00 - 520.00
- Trade payabies 6.21 - 6.21
Provisions 1522 - 1522
Total non correat liabilities 541.43 - 541.43
Current liabilities
Tinancial liabilities
- Borrowings 117,16 - 117.16
- Trade payables 481.14 - 481.14
- Other financial liabilities . 2725 - 27.25
Provisions 39.32 - 39.32
Other current Hiabilities 2498 - 24.98
Total current linbilities 689.85 - 689.85
Total equity and liabilities 1,712.49 (10.01}) 1,702.48

(*Indian Gaap number have been regrouped to conform to classifications as per Ind AS)




New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statement as at 31 ¥arch 2018
CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

Annexure I[Ta - Reconciliation of equity as at 31 March 2017

(Rs. in millions)

Foot notes Indian GAAP* Ind AS Adj Ind AS

Assets

- Non-corrent nssets
Property, plant and cquipment 37.45 - 37.45
Intangible assets 4 187.60 702 195.22
Capital work-in-progress 4.35 - 435
Financial assets
- Loans 1 12.21 (9.05) 3.16
- Other financial assets 0.08 - .08
Other non-current assets 1 35.606 0.83 6.49
Tatal non-current assets 247,35 (0.60} 246,75
Current nssefs
Inventories ‘386.10 60,38 446,48
Financiai asseis
- Trade receivables 7 1,270.73 (75.34) 1,195.39
- l.oans i 17.79 712 24.91
- Cash and cash equivalenis 43.04 - 43.04
Other current assets 1 0.90 0.91 1.81
Total currenf assets 1,718.56 {6.93) 1,711.63
Total assets 1,965.91 {7.53) 1,958.38
Equity and linbilifies
Equity
Equity share capital 0.21 - 0.21
Other equily
- Retained earnings 3 19.04 (5.70) 13.34
~ Other reserves 539.91 0.71 540.62
Total equity 539,16 (4.99) 554,17
Non-current liabilitics
Financial liabilitics
- Borrowings 55292 - 552.92
- Trade payables 935 - 935
Pravisions . 11,79 - 11.79
Ieferred tax liabilities (net) 3 9.25 (2.54) 6.71
Total won eurrent liabilities 583.31 {2.54) 580.77
Current liabilitics
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 232.49 - 232.49
- Trade payables 55518 - 555.18
- Other firancial liabilities 228 - 2.28
Provisions 436 - 436
Other current liabilities 29.13 - 29.13
Total current liabilitics 423.44 - 823.44
Total equity and liabilities 1,965.91 (7.53) 1,958.38

(*Indian Geap number have been regrouped to conforin to classifications as per Ind AS)
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Annexure [1h - Recancilintion of prefit ard loss for year ended 31 March 2017

{Rs, in millions)

Iilian GAAP Ind AS Adkj Ind AS
T Revenue from operations 1,432.58 {85.20) 134738
I Cther income 5.02 1.10 1.12
111 Total Income {I+11) 1,432,60 (54.10y 1,348.50
IV Expenses
Cost of raw materials and components consumed 608,19 - G08.19
Purchase of traded books 1.24 - 1.24
(Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods and work in progress ' {40.30) (23.14) {68 44}
Tublication expenses 8348 - 88.48
Employce benefits expense 2 230.89 (0.7 230.12
Selling and dislribution expenses 106.01 - 106.01
Finance cost 96,76 - 96.76
Depreciation and amortisation expense 48.53 (7.62) 40.91
Other expenses 1 173.10 (55.92) LI7.18
Tatal expenses 1,312.90 (92.45) 1,220.45
v Profit hefore tax 18.70 8.35 £28.05
V[ Tax expense:
Current tax 2206 - 22,06
Income tax adjustment related to earlier year - - -
Deferred tax {eredit)f charge 19.67 3.02 22.69
Fednl fax expenses 46.73 3.2 44.75
VH Profit for the year (V-VT) . ) '5'7.97 5,33 83,30
¥If] Other Camprehensive Income
- Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 2 )
Re-measurement gainsf(losses) on detined benefit plans - (1.27) (1.27)
Tax impact on re-measurement gains/(Josses) en defined benefit plans - 044 .44
IX Total Comprehensive Income for the year {(VH + VIIT) 77.97 450 82.47

Footnutes to the.reconcilintion of equity as at 1 Apzil 2016 and 3F March 2017 and profit or boss lor the year ended 31 March 2017 are as helow:-

1} Nen Current Finnncial assets/ Finanecial liabilitics
Under previous GAAP, certain non-current financial asscts/ liabilities which were measured at cost/ best estimate of the expenditure required to
setile the obligation, at the balance sheel date without considering the effect of discounting where as these are measured at the present value on the
balance sheet date under Ind AS. Accordingly the Company has recognised the adjusiments to the respective can ying amount and the consequent
itapact on finance cos¥/ finance income due to unwinding of the discounting impact. The corresponding impact on the date of transition has been
recognised in eguily.

Re-measurement differences

Under previous GAAP, there was no concept of other comprehensive income and hence, previous GAAT profit is reconciled to total comprehensive
income as per Ind AS. Under previous GAAP, the remeasurments of the net defined benefil liability were recognised in: the slaternent of profit and
toss however under Ind AS, said remeasurment differences nel of the related tax impact are recognised in the other compreliensive income,

2

3) Deffered Tax

Under Ind AS, the Company has recognised the consequential lax implications on the impact on account of adjustments explained above,

Goodwill amoritsation

Under previous GAAP, goodwill was amortised on straight line basis over a period of 10 years. Under Ind AS, Goodwitl is required to be tested for
impairment at each reporting date. Hence, amount of amortisation made for goodwill under IGAAP has been reversed in the statement of profit and
loss,

4

5

Employee Stock option expense

Under previous GAAP, employee stock options given by holding company to the cmployees of sushdiary company were not accounted for in
subsidiary company. Under lnd AS, the helding company has capitalised such expense under investment in subsidiary and the subsidiary has
recogmised employee steck eption expense with the eorrosponding credit in deeimed capital contribution.
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&) Revenue recopnition

Under previcus GAAT, rebate and discount were shown as an expense. Under Tnd AS, revenue is micasured at fatr value of the consideration received
or receivable taking into aceount the amount of any Irade discount and volume rebale allowed by the entity.

7

Provision for expected crelit loss

Under previous GAAP, provision was being made on financial assefs on incurred loss model. Under Ind AS, provision on financial assets is required
to be made as per expested credit loss model considering the expected cash shortfalls from such financial asscts and delay in expecled realization

from such financial assets.

49

Previous year ligures

Previous year figures have been regrouped / rech::slhed where necessary, to conform to this year's classification.

The accompanying noles arc an integral patt of the financial statements.
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